
 

 

Mountain Valley Library System 

Administrative Council 
 

April 14, 2016 Meeting 

1:00‐3:00 

Roseville Public Library 
225 Taylor Street 
Roseville, CA 95678 

 
1. Welcome and Roll Call            George, Chair 

 
2. Public invited to address the committee 
 
3. Approval of the Agenda            George 
 
4. Volunteer for minute taking          George 
 
5. Consent Calendar              George 

A. Minutes from May 11, 2015 Meeting          Attachment 1 
 
6. Nominations and election of FY 16‐17 officers      George 

 
7. Approve the OCLC Contract for FY 16‐17       George   Attachment 2 

 
8. Review the Am‐Tran Delivery Contract         George   Attachment 3 

 
9. Approve the  FY 16‐17 Budget           George   Attachment 4 

 
10. Review of MVLS By‐laws/History (if necessary for newbies)  George   Attachment 5 
 
11. Results of California State Library Board Meeting on April 8   George   Attachment 6   

and next steps 
 

12. CalPERS Obligation and Discussion of How to Fund Obligation   George   Attachment 7 
When MVLS Reserves are depleted (5‐7 years based on  
actuaries from this year) Jane Light is NOT available to attend.  
 

13. What’s New in NorthNet, State Library, and CENIC    George 
 
14. Sharing and Roundtable            George  
 

15. Adjourn                George  

 
 
 
 

ACTION 
 
 
 

ACTION 
 
 

ACTION 
 

ACTION 
 
 
 

ACTION 
 
 
 
 

P 1



 

MINUTES 
MOUNTAIN- VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM-ADMINISTRATIVE COUNCIL 

Conference Call Meeting 
Monday, May 11, 2015 

11AM 
 
Meeting called to order at  

1. Welcome and Roll call 
 
Meeting was called to order at  by Chair, Mary George 
 
Members present: Mary George (Placer), James Ochsner (Sutter), Natasha Casteel (Roseville), Lisa Dale 
(Folsom), Greta Galindo (Woodland) Rodney?? 
 

2. Public invited to address the Council 
 
No members of the public were present. 
 

3. Approval of the Agenda       Approved unanimously 
 

4. Volunteer for minute taking      Greta Galindo 
 
 

5. Consent Calendar 
a. Approval of the Minutes of March 27, 2015 M/Casteel S/Ochsner.  Approved unanimously 

 

 

6. Approve the OCLC Contract for FY 15-16 

Approval of the OCLC Contract was discussed. Mary George has communicated with the OCLC rep and 
encourages us to check out the different products that are included in our services. The group contract keeps the 
cost increase to just 3%. MVLS has asked OCLC to evaluate the contract 3 times; while fewer records are being 
processed we are doing other things more. 

James Ochsner would like the rep to be contacted to explain more about what services are being provided 
through the OCLC contract. James suggests staff training for features that we haven’t been using. Mary George 
will coordinate that meeting. 

Lisa Dale asked about Woodland’s cost and the credits, Mary George answered that it is a flat rate, and the 
credit is from 4-5 years ago. 

Mary George- while we don’t fully understand the pricing, we have had it evaluated in the past and OCLC has a 
board that reviews their pricing and structure. 

M/Ochsner S/Dale Approved unanimously 

7. Approve the Am-Tran Delivery Contract 

P 2

caow
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



The Delivery Contract was discussed.  James Ochsner would like delivery to be better covered through CLSA 
distributions; stating that it is difficult to budget with the CLSA distributions being a moving target.  The 
delivery contract will increase 3% as opposed to 5%. Either party can cancel within 15 days’ notice. 

M/ Dale S/Casteel 

8. Approve the FY15/16 MVLS Budget 

Mary George reviewed the budget worksheet. 

 M/Dale S/Ochsner 

9. CalPERS Contract and Local County Counsel 

Mary George has discussed the CalPERS contract and information we received with Placer County Counsel. 
Options were discussed:  

Go back to all original members and either collect fees or some type of monetary cash-out of their CalPERS 
obligations. We need to consider a fee schedule and the legal rights/obligations of non-participatory members. 
Explaining to past members that they have an obligation and be able to set-up a pay-off schedule 

Re-instate MVLS fees with an amortization plan towards pay-off 

We will continue to watch legislation so we can establish a way to bring in money towards the CalPERS 
obligations and possibly re-negotiate with CalPERS. 

Question: Who are we obligated to? Is it retirement? Healthcare? What are the terms of the contract so we can 
develop an amortization schedule? 

This is an on-going discussion. 

10. Review of MVLS History and Members 
 

11. Nomination/Election of FY15-16 Officers 

P 3



P 4

caow
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



P 5



P 6



P 7



P 8



P 9

caow
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



P 10



P 11



MOUNTAIN VALLEY BUDGET FY 15/16 FY 16/17

3000 Fund Balance 10,480           12,145          

3510 Interest Income 350                350               

   

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 10,830           12,495          

4105 Pension Fund/PERS 10,830           12,495         

   

   

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,830           12,495          

Fund balance as of 6/30/15 196,647        

Amount spent FY 15/16 (10,998)         

Fund balance as of 6/30/16 185,649         Estimated

P 12

caow
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM BYLAWS  
 
 
NAME  
The name of the System shall be the Mountain-Valley Library System (MVLS). 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of the System shall be to provide residents of each Member library jurisdiction 
or institution with the opportunity to obtain through their libraries needed materials and 
information services by facilitating access to the resources of other libraries in the System, 
and resources of all libraries in this State, pursuant to the California Library Services Act 
(California Education Code [hereafter referred to as “Educ. Code”], Sections. 18700 et. seq.) 
the California Library Services Act Regulations (Code of California Regulations, Title 5, 
Division A, Chapter 2) [hereafter referred to as “CLSA Regs.”], and the Library of California 
Act (Educ. Code, Secs. 18870 et. seq.) and the annual priorities set by the Administrative 
Council.  
 
MEMBERSHIP 
Those public libraries in the System area which meet conditions set forth by the CLSA Regs. 
Sec. 20105 et. seq. and all libraries which meet the conditions of Educ. Code, 18830 
(“Regional Library Network Members”), and who qualify by action of their governing bodies 
shall be Members of the System and shall have representation on the Administrative Council.  
 
FEES, DUES AND ASSESSMENTS  
The dues payable per fiscal year to the System by Members shall be in such amount as 
determined annually by resolution of Administrative Council. The fiscal year is defined as 
July 1 to June 30.  
 
WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBERSHIP  
The Membership of a Member shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following 
events:  
 
(a) Upon failure to pay dues on or before January 31 of the fiscal year for which the dues are 
assessed. Such termination is to be effective thirty (30) days after a written notification of 
delinquency is given personally or mailed to the chief officer of the jurisdiction or institution 
by the Chair of the System. A Member may avoid such termination by paying the amount of 
delinquent dues within a thirty (30)-day period following the Member's receipt of the written 
notification of delinquency.  
 
(b) Upon receipt of a notice of termination from the chief officer of the jurisdiction or 
institution to the Chair of the System, provided that such notice is received between July 1 
and September 1 of any year. In the event that a notice of termination is received, the 
termination shall take place effective July 1 of the succeeding year.  
 
(c) Any member may change System membership pursuant to CLSA Regs. Sec. 20195. The 
governing body of the jurisdiction and the administrative body of the System it proposes to 

P 13

caow
Typewritten Text
Attachment 5



join shall file a joint notice of intent with the State Board. The notice shall be filed by 
September 1 of the year proceeding July 1 of the first full fiscal year for which state funds 
pursuant to the new membership are requested.  
 
GOVERNING AUTHORITY  
 
Administrative Council  
 
Roles and Responsibilities 
Pursuant to Educ. Code, Sec. 18747 (a) and CSLA Regs. Sec. 20135, it shall be the 
responsibility of the Administrative Council to: Generally administer MVLS; Adopt an 
annual Plan of Service; Adopt annual budget; Ensure that a report to the CLSA State Board 
regarding accomplishments and expenditures for the past year is issued; Adopt annual 
member fees, dues, and assessments; Adopt changes to the by-laws; Adopt System 
membership policies and approve new or remove members; Perform any and all duties 
imposed by law or by the bylaws.  
 
Effective July 1, 2006, the MVLS Administrative Council will contract with the North Bay 
Cooperative Library System (NBC) to provide services as described in the MVLS CLSA 
Plan of Service, administrative services, and other services as needed under the direction of 
the MVLS Administrative Council. It is the responsibility of the MVLS Administrative 
Council to annually evaluate the administrative and other services performed by NBC.  
 
Composition and Voting 
Pursuant to Educ. Code, Sec. 18747 (a), and CSLA Regs., Sec. 20140, the Administrative 
Council shall be composed of the head librarian or delegate of each member jurisdiction or 
member institution in MVLS. A quorum shall consist of more than 25% of the members. 
Each member jurisdiction shall have one vote to be cast by its representative.  
 
Only public library members shall vote on issues related to the California Library Services 
Act (CLSA). All members shall vote on issues that do not relate to CLSA, including annual 
fees, dues and assessments. Decisions shall be made by a majority vote of the members 
present at Administrative Council, except as provided herein.  
 
Meetings  
The Administrative Council shall meet a minimum of four (4) times per year. Special 
meetings may be called by the Chair or by petition of four Members of the Administrative 
Council.  
 
Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee shall consist of the Past Council Chair, Current Council Chair, 
Council Chair elect, other Standing Committee Liaisons, and a representative from the 
Sacramento Public Library.  Executive Committee will meet prior to the Council meeting 
to review System programs and budgets for their fiscal and program impact; recommend 
Proposed and Final Budgets to the Council; recommend changes to the Bylaws; 
recommend annual administrative services issue and set the Agenda for Council 
Meetings.  Each Committee member shall have one vote, and simple majority of those 

P 14



present passes motions. The Council Chair, or a member of the Executive Committee 
appointed by the Council Chair, shall prepare a summary of Committee actions and 
recommendations for presentation to the Administrative Council at its next meeting.  
 
The Council Chair shall preside at all meetings. The  Vice- Chair shall preside in the absence 
of the Chair and the immediate past Chair shall preside in the absence of both the Chair and 
the  Vice-Chair.  
 
The last meeting of the fiscal year of the Administrative Council shall be the annual meeting 
at which officers (Chair and Chair-Elect) and Standing Committee Chairs shall be elected for 
the following year. The fiscal year is defined as July 1 to June 30. Officers may not serve 
consecutive terms, except as defined in these Bylaws. Officers shall assume their positions on 
July 1. In the event that the Council Chair can no longer serve, the Vice-Chair shall assume 
the position of Chair for the remainder of the term. In the event that the Vice- Chair can no 
longer serve, the Administrative Council shall elect a new Chair and Vice-Chair to serve out 
the remainder of the term. The Vice-Chair succeeds the Chair in July. Should the Past Chair 
be unable to serve out their term, the Past Chair shall assume the position of Past Chair on the 
Executive Committee. 
 
Each year the final budget shall be adopted at the next Council Meeting following the 
adoption of the State Budget. 
  
The Administrative Council and Executive Committee may meet via electronic means 
such as telephone conference call, videoconference, or online meeting as long as the 
meeting is announced and conducted in accordance with the Brown Act.  Members of the 
public may attend any electronic meeting by requesting participation instructions from 
the System Administrator.  The Council Chair and Administrative Coordinator shall 
develop the Executive Committee Agenda.  The Administrative Council and Executive 
Committee agenda shall be developed by the Administrative Council Chair and the NBC 
Coordinator. The agendas and packets are to be distributed by the NBC Coordinator not 
less than seven days before a meeting.   A copy of the Administrative Council agenda 
will be sent to the NBC Chair. Recording of the minutes is the responsibility of the NBC 
Coordinator or their representative. Minutes of each meeting are adopted and/or revised 
by motion at the next meeting.  
 
SYSTEM STAFF  
There shall be no staff employed by MVLS.  NBC shall staff and supervise the operation of 
the System, provide information, prepare reports, evaluate services and resources, make 
suggestions and provide general guidance to the Administrative Council in performing its 
policy making functions.  
 
SYSTEM ADVISORY BOARD (SAB) 
 
Roles and Responsibilities  
Pursuant to Educ. Code, Sec. 18747 (b) and Sec. 18749-18750, and CSLA Regs. Sec. 20145 
it shall be the duties of the System Advisory Board to Assist Administrative Council in the 

P 15



development of the System Plan of Service; Advise the Council on the need for services and 
programs; and Assist in the evaluation of System services.  
 
Composition and Voting 
The governing body of each public library member appoints one member. Each member 
jurisdiction shall have one vote to be cast by its representative.  
 
Meetings  
The System Advisory Board generally meets on the same day and location as the Council 
meeting. A report is to be given by the SAB Chair at the Council meeting. The SAB shall 
establish its own agenda, elect its own officers and record its own minutes. Minutes are to be 
distributed with the Council/SAB agenda packet 
 
 
COMMITTEES 
The NBC Coordinator shall maintain the membership roster of all Committees.  
 
General (For all committees excepting Executive)  
The Administrative Council shall establish standing and special committees. Committees 
shall prepare recommendations and reports for consideration and action by the 
Administrative Council. The Administrative Council Chair shall appoint a liaison from 
Council to each Committee for a two (2) year term. The liaison shall be responsible for 
carrying the directives of the Administrative Council to the standing committee, seeing that 
the standing committee follows the MVLS by-laws and procedures, acting as a mentor to the 
committee in guiding its activities and decisions and interpreting System policies, and 
reporting and/or presenting the Committee recommendation(s) at each Administrative 
Council meeting. The liaison serves in an ex-officio capacity to the Committee.  
 
The Chair of each standing committee shall be chosen by the committee members at the 
first meeting of each fiscal year. The Administrative Council shall approve committee 
chairs at its first meeting following such selection of a committee chair. Member library 
staff and SAB members are encouraged to serve as members on standing committees.  
 
The Administrative Council and Executive Committee may meet via electronic means 
such as telephone conference call, videoconference, or online meeting as long as the 
meeting is announced and conducted in accordance with the Brown Act.  Members of the 
public may attend any electronic meeting by requesting participation instructions from 
the System Administrator.  The Council Chair and Administrative Coordinator shall 
develop the Executive Committee Agenda.  The Administrative Council and Executive 
Committee agenda shall be developed by the Administrative Council Chair and the NBC 
Coordinator. The agendas and packets are to be distributed by the NBC Coordinator not 
less than seven days before a meeting.   A copy of the Administrative Council agenda 
will be sent to the NBC Chair. Recording of the minutes is the responsibility of the NBC 
Coordinator or their representative. Minutes of each meeting are adopted and/or revised 
by motion at the next meeting.  
 
 

P 16



STANDING COMMITTEES  
Children's Committee  
 
Roles and Responsibilities  
The Children’s Committee shall plan and carry out regional programming for children's 
activities, and appoint sub-committees to plan workshops and the Summer Reading Program.  
 
Composition and Voting 
Council members, SAB members and designated staff may serve on this committee. It is 
recommended that children's services staff of System member libraries be appointed. Each 
Committee member shall have one vote and a simple majority passes motions.  
 
Meetings 
he Children’s Committee shall meet at least two times annually. The agenda shall be 
developed and sent out by the Chair. Minutes are recorded by an attending member and 
distributed by the Chair.  
 
 
ILL Committee 
 
Roles and Responsibilities  
The ILL Committee shall recommend ILL procedure and policy to the Administrative 
council, and evaluate effectiveness of ILL services among members.  
 
Composition and Voting  
Council members, SAB members and designated System member library staff may serve on 
this committee. It is recommended that ILL staff of System member libraries be appointed. 
Each Committee member shall have one vote and a simple majority passes motions.  
 
Meetings  
The ILL Committee shall meet at least once annually or as needed and shall report via its 
liaison to the Council. The agenda shall be developed by the Chair. The agenda and 
supporting documents shall be sent out by the Committee Chair. Minutes are to be recorded 
by an attending member and distributed by the Committee Chair.  
 
Reference Committee 
 
Roles and Responsibilities  
The Reference Committee shall review all aspects of the System reference program and 
provide input and recommendations regarding reference-related issues to the Administrative 
Council. This committee will also work closely with its Administrative Council liaison to 
evaluate current programs and services and to plan new programs and services.  
 
A "Forum" subcommittee will assists in planning for reference workshops.  
 
The Reference Committee will review and develop the Reference Plan of Service.  
 

P 17



Composition and Voting  
Administrative Council members, SAB members and designated System member library 
staff are eligible for this committee. Each Committee member shall have one vote and 
motions are passed by a simple majority.  
 
Meetings  
The Reference Committee shall meet at least twice annually and reports to Administrative 
Council via its liaison. The agenda shall be developed by the Chair and the Committee’s 
Administrative Council liaison. The agenda and supporting documents shall be sent out by 
the Committee Chair. Minutes are recorded by a Committee member and distributed by the 
Committee Chair.  
 
PROCEDURAL MANUAL  
A Procedural Manual for MVLS shall be developed by the Administrative Council and 
maintained and promulgated by the NBC Coordinator. The purpose the Manual shall be to 
comply with CSLA Regs., .Sec. 20136 and to enact these by-laws. The Procedural Manual 
shall be reviewed by Administrative Council.  MVLS BYLAWS 9/10/1999 rev 6/2/2006 Page 5  

  
 
AMENDMENTS  
These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Administrative Council 
provided that the proposed amendments were on the agenda and discussed by the Executive 
Committee.  

Approved by Administrative Council, January 24, 2008 
 
 
 

P 18



fi ,[^-{
fr"* 6? may 1990

MVLS, A BRIEF HISTORYI

The Mountain-Valley Library System (MVLS) was esuablished in i{arch
1969 when the lrlother Lode Library Systerpa and the Saeramento City-
colqty Library systems merged and included the sutrer colnty Library
and Marysville Clty Library. Mountein-Valley wes crested and funded
under the guidelines of the Publtc Llbnary Services Ac[

As a part of the prior Mother Lode System, Auburn was designaled Es an
'at€e'llbrary and funds from the Library Services and Construction Act
wene sought and socurcd to develop it as s rcferral cenler for El Dorado and
Placer County l-lbraries In March, 1968, an application was made for a
gngaier information network which would keep Auburn-Placrer as tn 'atea"
libnary, and include sacnamento es e "ngsearrh" library. The grant was
made and the Mountain-Valley Intormition Cenler began in tCOg. The
Mother Lode teletype network was erpahded !o include Sacramenlo. Sutter
County and Marysville, offices wene opened in the Central Library in
Sacramenbo, vans and drivers wene secured, and headquarters slalf was
hittd. The area library concept ended in 1980. Sacramenlo Central Library
rcmains the rcsource library lor the System.

Other jurisdictions that joined Mountaip Valley between 1969 and t9?2
included Woodland Public and Alpine,ryoto, Nevada and yuba Counties
{Mono Doo?) In 19?3/?4 MYLS received an LSCA granr enabling ucD,
CSUS, CRC, Sierra, Sacramento City College and Yuba College !o join in the
reference nelwork.

Rosevilfe Hospital joined in 1974, Dixon Public in 1979, Folsom Prison in
I982 and Lake Tahoe Community College in I985.

Between 1976 and 1979 reciprocal borrowing agreements were developed
for Tahoe area libraries via the "Cross the Line" and "sierra Libraries
Information Consortium" (SLIC).

I Prepared by Mary L. Stephens th assistance from Judy Lane; a cunroty overview.
dater need to be double checked i HVLS Official Minutes; send ne arty cotreetisrs o,r
oottssronS.
2Membenr inctuded Auburn-P and El Dorado Counties rnd the llevada Cnrnty

of Rqeville and Lincoln.Denonstration Project plus the

Page I

P 19



Also, in 1976. a Tri-System agreement was signed whereby MVLS. North
tsay and North State Cmperative Library Systems agreed to coordinate
their services and to share materials with users throughout the Tri-System
anea. In January 1977 a Tri-System delivery service began with daily
inter-ties among the three Systems. In 1980 that delivery seruice was
erpanded to include the 49-99 Library System and the Bay Area Library
and Information System (tsALIS). In 1982 Peninsula Library System was
added. The name of the erpanded delivery seryice was the Library
C.onnection for Northern California and it ceEsed operation in late 19E0.

Use of the leletype ceased amund l9E2 and was superseded by Forum and
in l9EE by OPUS. The film circuit was in operation from 1970 to 1979.

The California Library Services Act (CLSA) was enacled in 1977,
superseding the Public Library Services AcL The key featurcs were ILL
reimbursemenl for all libraries ercept for profit libraries and the
establishment of System Advisory Boards

In 1979 Joe Matthews completed a feasibility study for MVLS for a
sysiemwide, automated circulation system. As a result Liz Gibson was hired
to advise us regarding retrospective conversion options, and the MVLS Data
Base Conversiorp Project began in t982 using AGILE. Mark Parker
developed a replort on MVLS Data Base Options and the decision !o use
AGTLE CD-ROM catalogs was made in 1984. The change to IMPACTS
occurred in l9EE or 19E9.

In addition to the Cmrdinator and Information Center Librarians, s&aff has
included Children Consultants, a Media Librarian, a Resource Development
Librarian and a Systems Level Systems Analyst. A list of Coordinators
follows. ,

MVLS COORDINATORS

Dale Perkins 8/65 (?) - l97l ft)
Omar Bacon 5/7 | - 4/72
Ursufa Meyer 1972 - 1973/74 Ql
Salfie Gray 1974 - 9/75
Virginia Short 1975 - 1982
Mark Parker 7/83 - 2/89
Gerald Masinnitv 8/89 -

Page 2

P 20



(-

HISTORY

The Mounrain-Valley Library System (MVLS) grew out of two previous library
systems. The Mother Lode Library SysLem, comprising El Dorado and Placer
Counties and the Roseville Public Library, had been in operation since 1965.
As a major resource library in the Mother Lode System, Auburn had been
des ignated as an ttareatt library and funds from the Library Services and
Construction Act were sought and secured to develop it as a referral center
for El Dorado and Placer County Libraries. In March, 1968, another
application ri/as made for a larger information network which would keep
Auburn-Placer as an t'areattlibrary, and include Sacramento, a single library
system, 3s a ttresearchtr library. The grant was approved and implementation
began in July, 1968. These tT"/o systems , plus the Sutter County Library and
the Marysville City Library, applied to create the larger library system with
funding from the Public Library Services Act, in a proposal to the California
State Library in September, 1968. The application was approved and the
Mountain-Valley Library System was formed in March, 1969.

Initially, The l"lother Lode teletype network was expanded to include
Sacramento, Sutter County and Marysville. This neLwork ultimately was

extended to nine libraries, until it was replaced by electronic mail to twenty
libraries, in 1983. 0f f ices vrere opened in the Central Library in Sacral'rento'
where they remain today, vans and drivers were secured, and a headquarters
staff \.ras hired. The area library concept lasted until 1980, when System
activities and st.aff were merged at the Sacramento Central Library, as the
principal resource institution for the System.

The Mountain-Val1ey Library System, as it now exists, is a grouP of l3 city
and county public libraries. Some are small independent communities, such as

Lincoln, and some are larger units, such as Sacramento Public or Yolo County
libraries. As affiliate members, there are also seven communiLy college and
two state university libraries. Lastly, there is one special library
(Roseville Community Hospital) and one prison library (Folsom). In spite of
their differences, they find that certain needs can be met by working together
and sharing resources.

Over 1,400,000 people in an area of ll,l45 square miles now have access via
interlibrary loan or direct borrowing to more than five million volumes, from
which they may obtain information or pleasure. There is a reciprocal
borrowing agreement among all public library members, whereby a valid library
card from one member library enables its patrons Lo borrow directly from any
other library. The academic affiliate libraries may have more limitations on
direct-loan policy, but they do lend virtually a1l circulating materials to
whichever System library requesLs them, through interlibrary 1oan. i"laterials
that can be checked out can be relurned to any library outlet in the System'
with the exception of films and recordings, which should be returned to the
lending library.

One of the main functions of the System is fo provide a framework so that any
member library may effectively use the materials of the other System
libraries. This concept was extended outside the system in 1976, when an
agreement was signed to provide resource sharing between tuIVLS, North-Bay and
North StaEe Cooperative Systems. This interEie network has been developed

P 21



into a parcel delivery network among seven northern California Systems,
ranging from Kern County in the South to the Oregon border.

MVLS is funded out of three sources: State funds (catifornia Library Services
Act). Federal funds (Library Services and Construction Act) and some 1ocal
funds from member libraries.

System policy and budget matLers are determined by its Administrative Council
which consists of Ehe head librarians of each member library. The System

Advisory Board, a citizen's advisory group, assists the Council by helping to
plan and evaluate System services and by advising the Council on service
developments based on community library needs. The Council meets on the
second Thursday of every other month, beginning with July of each fiscal year.
The City of Sacramento acts as fiscal agent for the System.

At the present time, Mountain-Valley provides its members with the following
services:

Information network, which includes the following:

Electronic mail and telephone
An information and research center for reference requests
A cenler for processing out-of-System interlibrary loans
Regular deliveries by van or United Parcel Service
Links between member library book circulation syslems

Workshops and in-service training Programs and library rours

3. Management of a database containing computerized records of most
books held by System public and community college libraries

4. Management of voluntary l6rnm film and video circuits

6. Adminislration and coordination of System activities

general I ibrary

and services

Development of ne\^7 programs and studres

Development of cooperation among a1l tyPes of libraries

The various services provided through the llountain-Valley Library System have
the goal of helping the member libraries improve their services to every
person in the area, through resource sharing. In some cases, this means

services and,/or materials which the library could not perf orrn or obtain alone.
In other cases, such as interlibrary loan and subject reference, it means
speeding the flow of requests and answers to nake fulfillmenL a reality.

5 . Consultant services for reference, automat ion and
services.

P 22



P 23



P 24



 

To:  California Library Services Board             

From:  Mel Lightbody, Chair, NorthNet Library System (NLS) 
 

Re:  Recommendations to California Library Services Board re 2016/17 proposed CLSA funding 

Date:  March 24, 2016 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide comments to the Board on the critical allocation of the 

proposed on‐going and one‐time funds for the California Library Services Act (CLSA). 

Ongoing Funds ‐ $1.8 million 

We support the staff recommendation that the on‐going $1.8 million would be allocated to systems by 

the current allocation formulas created by the Board.   These additional funds would support the critical 

essential functions of our systems – communications and delivery – and also support funds for the 

administration of the systems.  In recent years, these funds have also been used to support costs for 

digital content (e‐books and e‐magazines) where the purchase of the resource was shared by three or 

more member libraries.  We strongly recommend the following: 

 Definition of e‐resource sharing be expanded to include streaming content services (music and 

film) and other types of digital resources, databases, etc.  

 Zip Books, a customer‐centric alternative to inter‐library loan http://califa.org/wp‐

content/uploads/2013/10/Zip‐Books‐for‐Rural‐Libraries‐FAQ.pdf  and other innovative services 

to modernize and streamline the inter‐library loan process be eligible for funding within the 

communications and delivery program.   

One‐time Funds ‐ $3 million  

We believe that the $3 million in one‐time funding should be spent strategically in support of resource‐

sharing which is the hallmark of CLSA and in support of programs that will have a significant statewide 

impact.  Both PLP and NLS have recently participated in strategic planning activities and have identified 

service priorities for the systems that could be initiated or strengthened with these funds.  Below are 

some possible programs: 

 Statewide E‐resources ‐ Although statewide aggregated e‐resource purchasing has been 

challenging in the past due primarily to costs, these state funds could be leverage with federal 

and other funds to initiate a portfolio of e‐resources that could be curated to be useful for 

public library and school collections.   This statewide purchase could free up some local 

resources currently spent on these resources to be used for other material that was more 

tailored to the needs of the individual communities.   This service is available in most other 

states.  These resources could be supported with a combination of federal, state and local funds.  

Here is a good example of students in Massachusetts who can access e‐resources from their  

G‐mail accounts ‐ http://mblc.state.ma.us/grants/licenses/blog/category/gale/. 

 

 Support for Broadband Equipment  ‐ We appreciate the support of the Governor and the 

Legislature  for public library connectivity to California’s high speed research and education 

P 25

caow
Typewritten Text
Attachment 6



network (CalREN) and funds for equipment to make that connection happen.  A number of 

NorthNet member libraries are taking advantage of that opportunity.  Yet the costs for 

equipment to connect to this network as well as local one‐time costs to provide access to the 

network and to support the initial up‐front cost of circuits before federal and state discounts are 

applied make this opportunity unattainable for libraries in rural and geographically isolated 

communities where libraries may be the only access point to the information superhighway.  

Building on your previous investment, we would encourage you to consider continuing that 

support as a possible use of some or all of these one‐time funds.   

 

 Statewide Virtual Library Card – Although there is much local pride and identity in unique 

community library cards,   we have the opportunity to create some kind of virtual statewide 

library card that could provide access to e‐resources that were made available by any public 

library in the state that participated in CLSA ‐ the electronic version of the universal borrowing 

program.  The virtual library card could be issued along with a driver’s license or a statewide 

identification card – we could identify a convenient and fairly universal process that most 

residents use and determine how we could integrate the virtual card creation in to that process.   

This card could greatly enhance the use of public library resources and lead to further utilization 

of print resources as well.   

 

 Student Success Cards – In order to better leverage the investments that public libraries are 

making in their digital and print resources, develop a state‐wide initiative to ensure that every 

student in a public K – 12 classroom has convenient access to those resources.  Several public 

libraries have initiated this service using the student ID to generate a virtual library card that 

provides online access for students to all public library e‐resources.  This program which also 

could include print resources would be enhanced by a statewide platform providing 

coordination through systems and county offices of education, educational materials for 

teachers and parents and possibly extended delivery by connecting existing public library 

delivery systems with public school delivery systems.  

 

 Planning, Coordination and Evaluation of System‐wide Services – This is an activity that is 

specifically outlined in CLSA (Sec. 18746).  Participating libraries want to identify their customer 

base, target new audiences, and determine the effectiveness of programs and services both at a 

local and system level.  There are a number of services that provide frameworks for this 

research and analysis (Analytics on Demand, Civic Technologies, Orange Boy).   The 

development of a statewide platform to provide access and technical assistance for audience, 

program and service evaluation would be beneficial for all the state’s libraries in order to 

provide more effective services.  (PLP is using local funds to develop a system‐level data analysis 

tool with Analytics on Demand which can be shared with other systems as a pilot for this 

analysis.) 

 

 

P 26



There are many other important public library service priorities for the wide variety of audiences we 

serve – early literacy, special needs, adult literacy, GED and high school success, senior services.   These 

services are critical yet the 2016/17 proposed funds have been allocated to the California Library 

Services Act in support of its primary mission – enhanced resource‐sharing of all types of materials 

providing access to knowledge. 

We also recommend the following: 

 Make one‐time funds available for the use of the nine CLSA cooperative library systems.   

 Identify two ‐ three key funding priorities.  

 Request systems to prepare proposals to implement programs in support of those priorities.   

 Establish a minimum level of funding that could be requested by each system. 

 Provide incentives for systems to cooperate on projects.  

 Require benchmarks/outcomes be established for all proposals.  

 Allow a portion of the $3 million to be used for administrative costs for these projects.   
 

We would be glad to provide further information or respond to any questions.   Please contact Mel 

Lightbody, NLS Chair, at 530‐538‐7240, mlightbody@buttecounty.net or Susan Hildreth,  NLS 

Administrator, at 650‐349‐5538 or hildreth@plsinfo.org.   

 

cc:  Greg Lucas, State Librarian 

 

 

 

P 27



 

 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 

P.O. Box 942709 
Sacramento, CA  94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240  
(888) 225-7377 phone – (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 
 

 

 

 
 

November 2015 
 
 
 

MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
(CalPERS ID: 1035483646) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2014 
 
Dear Employer, 
 
As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation 
report of your pension plan. 
 
Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two 
Sections: 
 

 Section 1 contains specific information for your plan, including the development of your 
pooled employer contributions and projected employer contributions, and 

 Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to your plan, as of June 
30, 2014. 

 

Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov). From the home page 
go to “Forms & Publications” and select “View All”. In the search box enter “Risk Pool Report” 
and from the results list download the Miscellaneous or Safety Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation 
Report as appropriate. 
 
Your 2014 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your 
pension plan at CalPERS. Your CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial 
Certification Section on page 1, is available to discuss your report with you after November 30, 
2015. 
 

Future Contribution Rates 
 

   Fiscal 
   Year 

Employer Normal  
Cost Rate + 

Employer Payment of 
Unfunded Liability 

2016-17    0.000%  $12,955 
2017-18 (projected)    0.0%  $15,936 

 

The exhibit above displays the Minimum Employer Contributions, before any cost sharing, for 
2016-17 along with estimates of the contributions for 2017-18. The estimated contributions for 
2017-18 are based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, including 
an estimated 2.4 percent investment return for fiscal 2014-15.  
 
A projection of employer contributions beyond 2017-18 can be found in the Risk Analysis 
Section of this report, “Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios”, under a variety of 
investment return scenarios. Please disregard any projections provided to you in the past. 
Member contributions, other than cost sharing (whether paid by the employer or the 
employee), are in addition to the above amounts. The employer contributions in this report do 
not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your employees. 

P 28

caow
Typewritten Text
Attachment 7



MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
(CalPERS ID: 1035483646) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 

 

The estimate for 2017-18 also assumes that there are no future contract amendments and no 
liability gains or losses (such as larger than expected pay increases, more retirements than 
expected, etc.) This is a very important assumption because these gains and losses do occur 
and can have a significant effect on your contributions. Even for the largest plans or pools, such 
gains and losses can impact the employer’s contribution rate by one or two percent of payroll or 
even more in some less common circumstances. These gains and losses cannot be predicted in 
advance so the projected employer contributions are estimates. Your actual employer 
contributions for 2017-18 will be provided in next year’s valuation report. 

 
Changes since the Prior Year’s Valuation 
 

This actuarial valuation includes Board adopted changes to the demographic assumptions based 
on the most recent experience report. The most significant of these is the improvement in post- 
retirement mortality acknowledging the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our 
membership and expected continued improvements. The actuarial assumptions and methods 
used in CalPERS public agency valuations are approved by the Board of Administration upon the 
recommendation of the Chief Actuary. The individual plan actuary whose signature appears in 
the actuarial certification in the accompanying report does not set plan specific actuarial 
assumptions. 
 
Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to your plan such as 
contract amendments and funding changes. 
 
Effective with the 2014 actuarial valuation Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 27 financial reporting information is no longer provided in CalPERS annual 
actuarial valuation reports. GASB 27 has been replaced with GASB 68 for financial statement 
reporting purposes. CalPERS is providing separate accounting valuation reports on a fee for 
service basis for our public agency employers. More details on GASB 68 and instructions for 
ordering your GASB 68 report are available on our website.  
 
Further descriptions of general changes are included in the “Highlights and Executive Summary” 
section and in Appendix A, “Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of your 
Section 2 report. We understand that you might have a number of questions about these 
results. While we are very interested in discussing these results with your agency, in the 
interest of allowing us to give every public agency their result, we ask that, you wait until after 
November 30 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 
 
Potential Changes to Future Year Valuations 
 
One of CalPERS strategic goals is to improve the long-term pension benefit sustainability of the 
system through an integrated view of pension assets and liabilities. The Board of Administration 
has been engaging in discussions on the funding risks faced by the system and possible risk 
mitigation strategies to better protect our members. Recent Board actions on a new asset 
allocation, new actuarial assumptions and new smoothing and amortization policies have 
already lowered risk. However, future contribution rate volatility is expected as CalPERS pension 
plans continue to mature.  
 

P 29



MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
(CalPERS ID: 1035483646) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 

 

At its November 2015 Board of Administration meeting CalPERS adopted a Funding Risk 
Mitigation Policy that addresses these risks in a balanced manner. The policy will result in a 
gradual shifting of the asset allocation in a way that will lower investment risk. This shift means 
accepting lower future expected returns and a lower actuarial discount rate. In time, the policy 
is expected to lower the level of risk borne by employers and, ultimately, by members. 
Additional information on the CalPERS new Funding Risk Mitigation policy can be found on our 
website. 
 
If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-
225-7377). 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary

P 30



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK

P 31



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
as of June 30, 2014 

 

for the 
 MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 

of the 
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 

(CalPERS ID: 1035483646) 

 
REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR FISCAL YEAR  
July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017

P 32



 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

SECTION 1 – PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION 

SECTION 2 – RISK POOL ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION

P 33



 
 

 

(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 468300            (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 433708 REPORT ID: 90316 

 

Section 1 

C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  

 
 

 
Plan Specific Information  

for the 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 

 of the 
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 

 
(CalPERS ID: 1035483646) 

(Rate Plan: 1693)

 

P 34



 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

 

ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION         1 

 

HIGHLIGHTS AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY          

 

    INTRODUCTION         3 

    PURPOSE OF SECTION 1         3 

    REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION         4 

    PLAN’S FUNDED STATUS         5 

    PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS         5 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

    ALLOCATION OF PLAN’S SHARE OF POOL’S EXPERIENCE/ASSUMPTION CHANGE           7 

    DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN’S SHARE OF POOL’S MVA         7 

    SCHEDULE OF PLAN’S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES                         8 

    ALTERNATE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES         9 

    FUNDING HISTORY         9 

RISK ANALYSIS 

 

    VOLATILITY RATIOS         12 

    ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS         13 

    ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY         14 

    HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY         15 

PARTICIPANT DATA         16 

LIST OF CLASS 1 BENEFIT PROVISIONS         16

PLAN’S MAJOR BENEFIT OPTIONS         18  

P 35



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 

CalPERS ID: 1035483646 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page 1 
 
 

 

ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 

 
Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2014 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CalPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2014 provided by employers participating 
in the Miscellaneous Risk Pool to which your plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts 
for those agencies. 
 
As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the Pool Actuary has certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
Risk Pool containing your MISCELLANEOUS PLAN has been performed in accordance with generally accepted 
actuarial principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, and that 
the assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the Risk Pool as of the date of this 
valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 

provision information for your plan, it is my opinion as your Plan Actuary that the Side Fund and other 
Unfunded Accrued Liability bases as of June 30, 2014 and employer contribution as of July 1, 2016, have been 
properly and accurately determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 
 
The undersigned is an actuary for CalPERS, who is a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and 
Society of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. 
 
 

 
 
MAY SHUANG YU, ASA, MAAA 
Senior Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 

 
 

  

 

P 36



 

 
 

 

 

HIGHLIGHTS AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 

 INTRODUCTION 

 

 PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

 

 REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

 

 PLAN’S FUNDED STATUS 

 

 PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS

P 37



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 

CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

3 

Introduction 

This report presents the results of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation of the MISCELLANEOUS PLAN of the 
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). 
This actuarial valuation sets the Fiscal Year 2016-17 required employer contributions. 
 
This actuarial valuation includes Board adopted changes to the demographic assumptions based on the 
most recent experience study report. The most significant of these is the improvement in post- retirement 
mortality acknowledging the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and expected 
continued improvements. The actuarial assumptions and methods used in CalPERS public agency valuations 
are approved by the Board of Administration upon the recommendation of the Chief Actuary. The individual 
plan actuary whose signature appears in the actuarial certification in this report does not set plan specific 
actuarial assumptions. 
 
Effective with the 2014 actuarial valuation, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27 
financial reporting information is no longer provided in CalPERS annual actuarial valuation reports. GASB 27 
has been replaced with GASB 68 for financial statement reporting purposes. CalPERS is providing separate 
accounting valuation reports on a fee for service basis for our public agency employers. More details on 
GASB 68 and instructions for ordering your GASB 68 report are available on our website. 
 

Purpose of Section 1 

This section 1 report for the MISCELLANEOUS PLAN of the MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM of the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) was prepared by the Plan Actuary in order to: 
 
 Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2014; 
 Determine the required employer contribution for this plan for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2016 through June 

30, 2017; and 
 Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2014 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 

interested parties. 
 

The pension funding information presented in this report should not be used in financial reports subject to 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 68 for a Cost Sharing Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan. A separate accounting valuation report for such purposes is available from 
CalPERS and details for ordering are available on our website. 
 
The use of this report for any other purposes may be inappropriate. In particular, this report does not 
contain information applicable to alternative benefit costs. The employer should contact their actuary before 
disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly described above. 
 
 
California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 
 
This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with 
the exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in 
the Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 8. 
 
Additionally, this report includes the following “Enhanced Risk Disclosures” also recommended by the CAAP 
in the Model Disclosure Elements document: 

 A “Deterministic Stress Test,” projecting future results under different investment income 
scenarios 

 A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1 percent plus or 
minus change in the discount rate. 

P 38



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

4 

Required Employer Contribution 
 

 Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

Actuarially Determined Employer Contributions:  2015-161  2016-17 

Employer Contributions (in Projected Dollars)     

Plan’s Employer Normal Cost $ 0 $ 0 

Plan’s Payment on Amortization Bases  10,830  12,9552 

Total Employer Contribution $ 10,830 $ 12,955 

Projected Payroll for the Contribution fiscal year $ 0 $ 0 

Required Employer Contributions (Percentage of Payroll)   

Pool’s Base Employer Normal Cost  0.000%  0.000% 

Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3     

    None  0.000%  0.000% 

Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4  0.000%  0.000% 

Pools Expected Employee Contribution for Formula  0.000%  0.000% 

Plan’s Total Normal Cost  0.000%  0.000% 

Plan’s Employee Contribution Rate  0.000%  0.000% 

Employer Normal Cost Rate  0.000%  0.000% 
     

Required Employer Contribution for Fiscal Year 2016-17     

              Employer Normal Cost Rate5    0.000% 

Plus Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment6   $ 1,079.62 

Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option   $ 12,495 

For Fiscal Year 2016-17 the total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan’s Employer 
Normal Cost Rate (expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) 
Contribution Amount (in dollars). Whereas in prior years it was possible to prepay total employer 
contributions for the fiscal year, beginning with Fiscal Year 2015-16 and beyond, only the UAL portion of the 
employer contribution can be prepaid. Late payments will accrue interest at an annual rate of 10 percent. 
 

Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll reporting process. As a percentage of 
projected payroll your UAL contribution is N/A percent for a total Employer Contribution Rate of N/A 
percent. 
 

1 The results shown for Fiscal Year 2015-16 reflect the prior year valuation and do not reflect any lump sum payment, 
side fund payoff or rate adjustment made after annual valuation report is completed. 
 

2 The Plan’s Payment on Amortization Bases reflects the sum of all UAL amortization bases including the Plan’s Side Fund 
(where applicable). 
 

3 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 
 

4 Risk pooling was implemented for most plans as of June 30, 2003. The normal cost difference was scheduled to be 
phased out over a five year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent for the first year of pooling, 
and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each subsequent year. 
 

5 The minimum employer contribution under PEPRA is the greater of the required employer contribution or the total 
employer normal cost. 
 

6 The Plan’s Payment on Amortization Bases Contribution amount for Fiscal Year 2016-17 will be billed as a level dollar 
amount monthly over the course of the year. Lump sum payments may be made through my|CalPERS. If you would like 
to prepay the entire Annual Payment toward your Plan’s Unfunded Accrued Liability, you can submit the Annual Lump 
Sum Prepayment amount against the July Unfunded Accrued Liability receivable.  The Annual Lump Sum Prepayment 
must be received in full on or before July 31. If there is contractual cost sharing or other change, this amount will 
change. § 20572 of the Public Employees’ Retirement Law assesses interest at an annual rate of 10 percent if a 

contracting agency fails to remit the required contributions when due. 

P 39



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 

CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

5 

Plan’s Funded Status 

 
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 

1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) $ 870,617 $ 929,526 

2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability  870,617  929,526 

3. Plan’s Market Value of Assets (MVA)  667,622  740,105 

4. Unfunded Liability [(2) - (3)]  202,995  189,421 

5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)]  76.7%  79.6% 
 
 

Projected Employer Contributions 

 
The estimated rate for 2017-18 is based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, 

including an estimated 2.4 percent investment return for Fiscal Year 2014-15. 
 

The table below shows projected employer contribution rates (before cost sharing) for the next five fiscal 
years, assuming CalPERS earns 2.4% for Fiscal Year 2014-15 and 7.50 percent every fiscal year 
thereafter, and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes 
to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between now and the beginning of the 
projection period. 
 

 

Required 
Contribution 

Projected Future Employer Contribution Rates 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Normal Cost % 0.000% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

UAL $ $12,955 $15,936 $18,917 $21,897 $22,459 $23,314 

 
 

P 40



 

 
 
 

 

 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

 
 

 DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN’S SHARE OF POOL’S EXPERIENCE/ASSUMPTION 

CHANGE 

 

 DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN’S SHARE OF POOL’S MVA 

 

 SCHEDULE OF PLAN’S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 

 

 ALTERNATIVE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

 

 FUNDING HISTORY

P 41



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

7 

Allocation of Plan’s Share of Pool’s 

Experience/Assumption Change 

 
It is the policy of the CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool’s experience 
gains/losses and assumption changes in a manner that treats each employer fairly and that maintains 
benefit security for the members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer 
contributions. For purposes of allocating the pool’s experience gains/losses and impact of assumption 
changes to all the individual plans within the pool, an individual plan’s share is allocated as follows: 
 

   
1. Plan’s Accrued Liability $ 929,526 

2. Projected UAL balance at 6/30/14   212,001 

3. Pool’s Accrued Liability $ 13,137,020,035 

4. Sum of Pool’s Individual Plan UAL Balances at 6/30/14  2,787,798,208 
5. Pool’s 2013/14 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss  (915,890,797) 

6. Pool’s 2013/14 Other (Gain)/Loss  1,024,915 

7. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Asset (Gain)/Loss [(1)-(2)]/[(3)-(4)] * (5)  (63,500) 

8. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Other (Gain)/Loss [(1)]/[(3)] * (6)  73 

9. Plan’s New (Gain)/Loss as of 6/30/2014 [(7)+(8)] $ (63,427) 

10. Increase in Pool’s Accrued Liability due to Change in Assumptions  577,299,719 

11. Plan’s Share of Pool’s Change in Assumptions [(1)]/[(3)] * (10) $ 40,848 
 
 

Development of the Plan’s Share of Pool’s Market 

Value of Assets 

 
    

1. Plan’s Accrued Liability $ 929,526 

2.  Plan’s UAL $ 189,421 

3. Plan’s Share of Pool’s MVA (1)-(2) $ 740,105 

 

P 42



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool                           Page 
 
 

8 

Schedule of Plan’s Side Fund and Other Amortization Bases 

 
There is a two-year lag between the Valuation Date and the Contribution Fiscal Year. 
 The assets, liabilities and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date; June 30, 2014. 
 The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date; Fiscal Year 2016-17. 
 
This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and due to the need to provide public 
agencies with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 
 
The Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the 
first day of the fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The UAL is rolled forward each year by subtracting the Payment on the UAL for the fiscal 
year and adjusting for interest. 
 

       Amounts for Fiscal 2016-17 

Reason for Base 
Date 

Established 
Amortization 

Period 
Balance 
6/30/14 

Payment 
2014-15 

Balance 
6/30/15 

Payment 
2015-16 

Balance 
6/30/16 

Scheduled 
Payment  

for 2016-17 

SHARE OF PRE-2013 POOL UAL 06/30/13 23 $97,331 $8,544 $95,772 $8,410 $94,235 $8,410 

ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/13 29 $111,515 $0 $119,879 $2,353 $126,430 $4,705 

NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/13 29 $3,155 $0 $3,392 $67 $3,577 $133 

ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/14 30 $(63,500) $0 $(68,262) $0 $(73,382) $(1,440) 

NON-ASSET (GAIN)/LOSS 06/30/14 30 $73 $0 $78 $0 $84 $2 

ASSUMPTION CHANGE 06/30/14 20 $40,848 $0 $43,911 $0 $47,204 $1,145 

TOTAL   $189,422 $8,544 $194,770 $10,830 $198,148 $12,955 

 
Your plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s pre-2013 UAL is based on your plan’s accrued liability and is amortized over the average amortization period of the 
combined existing amortization bases prior to June 30, 2013. The payment for Fiscal Year 2014-15 was allocated based on your plan’s payroll. 
 
The (gain)/loss bases are your plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s gain/loss for the fiscal year as disclosed on the previous page. These (gain)/loss bases will be 
amortized according to Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 

P 43



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool  Page 
 
 

9 

Alternate Amortization Schedules 

 
The amortization schedule shown on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze your current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments towards your plan’s unfunded liability of $198,148 as of June 30, 2016, 
which will require total payments of $410,120. 
 
Shown below are the level payments required to amortize your plan's unfunded liability assuming a fresh start 
over the various periods noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Current CalPERS Board policy calls for lump sum contributions in excess of the required employer contribution 
shall first be used to eliminate the side fund, if applicable, and then the plan’s share of the pool’s unfunded 
accrued liability. 
 
Please contact your plan actuary before making such a payment to ensure that the payment is applied correctly. 
 
 

Funding History 

 
The Funding History below shows the actuarial accrued liability, the plan’s share of the pool’s market value of 
assets, plan’s share of the pool’s unfunded liability, funded ratio and the annual covered payroll. 
 

 
Valuation 

Date 
 
 
 

Accrued 
Liability 

(AL)  

Share of Pool’s 
Market Value of 

Assets (MVA)  

Plan’s Share of 
Pool’s Unfunded 

Liability 

Funded 
Ratio 

 
 
 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

06/30/2011 $ 828,560 $ 669,930 $ 158,630 80.9% $ 0 

06/30/2012  859,372  637,854  221,518 74.2%  0 

06/30/2013  870,617  667,622  202,995 76.7%  0 

06/30/2014  929,526  740,105  189,421 79.6%  0 

 

 

Level Payment 

Period 
2016-17 

Payment 

Total 

Payments 

Total 

Interest 
Savings 

20 $18,747 $374,931 $176,782 $35,189 

15 $21,650 $324,757 $126,609 $85,362 

P 44



 

 

 

 

RISK ANALYSIS 

 

 VOLATILITY RATIOS 

 

 ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

 

 ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

 

 HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY

P 45



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

12 

Volatility Ratios 

 
The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on a number of assumptions about very 
long-term demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, 
disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be 
differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-to-year differences between actual experience and the 
assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and serve to lower or raise the employer’s rates from one 
year to the next. Therefore, the rates will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of 
investment returns. 
 
Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 
 
Plans that have higher asset to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return. For example, a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 8 may experience twice the contribution 
volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 4. Below we have 
shown your asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan’s current rate volatility. It should be noted that this 

ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize as the plan 
matures. 
 
Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 
 
Plans that have higher liability to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have 
twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 4. The liability volatility ratio is also 
included in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential for 
contribution volatility and the asset volatility ratio, described above, will tend to move closer to this ratio as 
the plan matures. 
 
 

Rate Volatility As of June 30, 2014 

  
1. Market Value of Assets $ 740,105 

2. Payroll  0 

3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR = 1. / 2.)  N/A 

4. Accrued Liability $ 929,526 

5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR = 4. / 2.)  N/A 

 

P 46



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 

CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

13 

Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios 

 

The investment return for Fiscal Year 2014-15 was announced July 14, 2015. The investment return in Fiscal 
Year 2014-15 is 2.4 percent before administrative expenses. For purposes of projecting future employer rates, 
we are assuming a 2.4 percent investment return for Fiscal Year 2014-15. 
 

The investment return realized during a fiscal year first affects the contribution for the fiscal year two years 
later. Specifically, the investment return for 2014-15 will first be reflected in the June 30, 2015 actuarial 
valuation that will be used to set the 2017-18 employer contribution rates, the 2015-16 investment return will 
first be reflected in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation that will be used to set the 2018-19 employer 
contribution rates and so forth. 
 

As part of this report, a sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the effects of various investment 
returns during fiscal years 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 on the 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21 employer 
contributions. Once again, the projected contributions assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be 
realized and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 
 

Five different investment return scenarios were selected. 
 The first scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 5th percentile return from 

July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018. The 5th percentile return corresponds to a -3.8 percent return for 
each of the 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 fiscal years. 

 The second scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 25th percentile return 
from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018. The 25th percentile return corresponds to a 2.8 percent 
return for each of the 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 fiscal years. 

 The third scenario assumed the return for 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18 would be our assumed 7.5 
percent investment return which represents about a 49th percentile event. 

 The fourth scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 75th percentile return 
from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018. The 75th percentile return corresponds to a 12.0 percent 
return for each of the 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 fiscal years. 

 Finally, the last scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 95th percentile 
return from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018. The 95th percentile return corresponds to a 18.9 
percent return for each of the 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 fiscal years. 

 

The table below shows the estimated projected contributions and the estimated increases for your plan under 
the five different scenarios. 
 

2015-18 Investment 
Return Scenario 

Estimated Employer UAL Contribution 
Estimated Total 

Change in Employer 
UAL Contribution 
between 2017-18 

and 2020-21 
2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

(3.8%) (5th percentile) $20,852 $27,623 $33,754 $17,818 

2.8% (25th percentile) $19,722 $24,332 $27,369 $11,433 

7.5% $18,917 $21,897 $22,459 $6,523 

12.0%(75th percentile) $18,146 $19,495 $17,464 $1,528 

18.9%(95th percentile) $16,964 $15,677 $0 $(15,936) 

 
In addition to the UAL Contribution amounts shown above the estimated employer normal cost of 0.0 percent 

of payroll will also be payable in each of the fiscal years shown above. The projected plan normal cost is 
expected to remain relatively stable over this time period. 
 

P 47



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

14 

Analysis of Discount Rate Sensitivity 

 

The following analysis looks at the 2016-17 total normal cost rates and liabilities under two different discount 
rate scenarios. Shown below are the total normal cost rates assuming discount rates that are 1 percent lower 
and 1 percent higher than the current valuation discount rate. This analysis gives an indication of the potential 
plan impacts if the PERF were to realize investment returns of 6.50 percent or 8.50 percent over the long-term. 
 
This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to the contribution rates. 
 

Sensitivity Analysis 

As of June 30, 2014 6.50% Discount Rate 
(-1%) 

7.50% Discount Rate 
(assumed rate) 

8.50% Discount Rate 
(+1%) 

Plan’s Total Normal Cost 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Accrued Liability $1,020,984 $929,526 $850,718 

Unfunded Accrued Liability $280,879 $189,421 $110,613 
 
  

P 48



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

15 

Hypothetical Termination Liability 

 
The hypothetical termination liability is an estimate of the financial position of your plan if you had 
terminated your contract with CalPERS as of June 30, 2014. Your plan liability on a termination basis is 
calculated differently compared to the plan’s ongoing funding liability. For this hypothetical termination 
liability calculation both compensation and service are frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay 
increases or service accruals are included. 
 
For the Terminated Agency Pool the CalPERS Board adopted a more conservative investment policy and 
asset allocation strategy. Since the Terminated Agency Pool has limited funding sources due to the fact that 
no future employer contributions will be made, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets. 
With this change, CalPERS increased benefit security for members while limiting its funding risk. However, 
this asset allocation has a lower expected rate of return than the PERF. Consequently, the lower discount 
rate for the Terminated Agency pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 
 
The effective termination discount rate will depend on actual market rates of return for risk-free securities 

on the date of termination. As market discount rates are variable the table below shows a range for the 
hypothetical termination liability based on the lowest and highest bond yields observed during the period 
from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015. 
 

 
 

Valuation 
Date 

 
 
 

Market 
Value of 

Assets (MVA) 
 

Hypothetical 
Termination 

     Liability1,2  

  @ 2.00%  

Unfunded 
Termination 

Liability 
@ 2.00% 

 Hypothetical 
Termination 

     Liability1,2  
  @ 3.75% 

 
 
 

Unfunded 
Termination 

Liability 
@ 3.75% 

06/30/14 $ 740,105 $ 1,696,824 $ 956,719 $ 1,416,033 $ 675,928 

  
 
1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 7 percent mortality contingency load in accordance with Board 

policy. Other actuarial assumptions, such as wage and inflation assumptions, can be found in Appendix A. 
 

2 The current discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10-year and 30-year 
U.S. Treasury yields where the weights are based on matching asset and liability durations as of the termination date. 
The discount rates used in the table are based on 20-year Treasury bonds, rounded to the nearest quarter percentage 
point, which is a good proxy for most plans. The 20-year Treasury yield was 3.00% on June 30, 2014 and 2.90% on 
June 30, 2015. 

 
In order to terminate your plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow your plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of your plan liabilities. CalPERS strongly 
advises you to consult with your plan actuary before beginning this process. 

P 49



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2014 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 

CalPERS ID: 1035483646  

 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool   Page  
 
 

16 

Participant Data 

 
The table below shows a summary of your plan’s member data upon which this valuation is based:   
 

 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 

Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 0 $ 0 

Number of Members     

     Active   0  0 

     Transferred  1  1 

     Separated  0  0 

     Retired  5  5 

 

 

List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions 

 None 

P 50



  

 

 

PLAN’S MAJOR BENEFIT OPTIONS

P 51



  

 

 
SECTION 1 – PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION FOR THE MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE MOUNTAIN-VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 

Plan’s Major Benefit Options 

Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 

 

 Contract package 

{sum_of_major_ben_1} 
Inactive 

Misc 
Receiving 

Misc 
     

Benefit Provision        
        
Benefit Formula 2.0% @ 60       

Social Security Coverage Yes       
Full/Modified Modified       

        
Employee Contribution Rate        
        
Final Average Compensation Period Three Year       
        
Sick Leave Credit Yes       
        
Non-Industrial Disability Standard       
        

Industrial Disability No       
        
Pre-Retirement Death Benefits        

Optional Settlement 2W Yes       
1959 Survivor Benefit Level No       
Special  No       
Alternate (firefighters) No No      

        
Post-Retirement Death Benefits        

Lump Sum $500 $500      
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) No No      

        
COLA 2% 2%      

        

        
        
        

        

        

CalPERS Actuarial Valuation – June 30, 2014   Page 18 
Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool    

P 52



  

 

 

Section 2 

 

C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  

 
 
 

Section 2 may be found on the CalPERS website 

(www.calpers.ca.gov) in the Forms and  

Publications section 

P 53


	MVLS Agenda 041816.pdf
	MVLS minutes 05-11-2015
	MVLS OCLC Contract FY 15-16
	MVLS FY1617 Budget
	MVLS_Bylaws
	History
	MOTHER LODE
	April 8 CLSB Doc NLS version
	mountain-valley-library-system-miscellaneous-2014



